SHARON ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
MINUTES OF WEDNESDAY, August24,2022

LOCATION OF MEETING: In compliance with the Governor’s emergency declarationrelative to the conduct of
public meetings, the Town arrangedto conduct board and committee meetings using Zoom video/audio
conferencing in an effort to minimizethe spread of COVID-19. Interested citizens received directions on how to
attend the meetingremotely in the agenda as posted on the ZBA website and the Town. This meeting was presented
with the video and/oraudio available for later broadcast. The Zoning Board of Appeals is focused on observing the
spirit of the Open Meeting Law during this temporary emergency situation to assure accountability for the
deliberations and actions of elected and appointed officials conducting the public’s business.

A virtualmeeting of the Sharon Zoning Board of Appeals was held on Wednesday, August 24,2022, at 7:00 P.M.
The following members were present as established by roll call: Joe Garber, Chair, Abe Brahmachari, David Young,
and Amold Wallenstein.

Mr. Garber, Chaircalled the meetingto orderat 7:01 PM. Mr. Garber, Chair,read Covid19 protocols perthe
Governorof MA and procedural groundrules.

Case 1900 - 20 Edge HillRoad (continued from 7/27/22)

Present forthe applicant: Resident Michael Gallagher and his builder, Matt

Matt explained thatthey wantto reduce the size of the addition so that they aren’t near the setbacks and eliminate
the bedroom downstairs that was originally proposed and add gambrelthe roofto add some space in the master
bedroom and be able to createa new bedroom in the back lefthand side ofthe structure.

Mr. Garbernotedthataccordingto the new plans they are within the limits of thesetback. Matt stated that they
could go a little bigger if they wanted but they’ve pared it down to make surethere weren’t any issues with the
setback.

Mr. Garberstated that he was highly satisfied with the new proposed plans and asked the board. Mr. Brahmachari
and Mr. Youngbothagreed that they were satisfiedas well.

Mr. Wallensteinaskedto be reminded whatthe setbacks were and wanted to confirm the measurements onthe
plans. Mattexplainedthat they aren’t goingany closerto the street. It was confirmedthatit’s the samesetback.

Mr. Garberaskedif any neighbors orabutters had any comments. There weren’t any.

Mr. Garberasked Mr. Gallagherif he would like to close their case Mr. Gallagher expressed thathe would. Mr.
Garberexplained the next steps to Mr. Gallagher.

Motion:
Chairmade a motionto close Case 1900 —20 Edgehill Road. Mr. Brahmachariseconded the motion. Approved by
unanimous rollcall vote 3-0-0 (Garber, Young, Brahmachari).

Motion:
Chairmade a motionto approve the Special Permit for Case 1900 — 20 Edgehill Road. Mr. Brahmachariseconded
the motion. Approvedby unanimousrollcall vote 3-0-0 (Garber, Young, Brahmachari).

Case 1905 - 700 South Main Street—Dollar Tree

Present forthe applicant: Adam Abelha and Dorena Costa - Signature Signs
Mr. Garberreadthelegalad intothe record.

Mr. Abelha presented the plans and explained that Dollar Tree is seekinga sign thatis 71 square feet, which exceeds
the allowanceof 50 square feet. They feel that the sign is in proportion with the frontage ofthe buildingand will
look appropriate with the building size which is 70’long. The buildingis set back greaterthan 100 from the
roadway. They feela scanbe seenbetter from the roadway with no detriment to the drivers.



Mr. Garberstated that hedoesn’thave any questions and he understands the need ofthe sign. He opened it up to the
otherboard members.

Mr. Brahmachari asked Mr. Abelha in terms of thenew sign in comparison to the other businessescanyou explain
how it would look with the adjacent signs. Mr. Abelha said theissue forthis tenantis thattheyarelocated in the
far-right corner ofthe plaza andthe sign looks smaller.

Mr. Youngaskedif there was a sign on the front ofthe road on the pylon? Mr. Abelha confirmed thatthey do. Mr.
Youngasked if they wanted this new sign to be 40% largerthanthe currentsign? Mr. Abelha said not 40% larger
than the existingbut ofthe allowed. He explained that the facade of the building was re-done, and it would accept a
largersign and it would be proportional to the facade. Mr. Youngasked that the current sign is smallerthanthe
guidelinesnow? And youwant to make it 40% bigger. Mr. Abelha explained that what they are askingis still under
whattheyareallowed 75 square feet. Mr. Youngasked how bigthe other signs were in the plaza. Mr. Abelha
explained that Mr. White hadno record ofany of the other tenants going foran appeal but what they are askingis
appropriate considering thattheyre-did thefagade.

Mr. Brahmachari questioned the location of the sign and wanted the other board members to weigh in. Mr. Garber
showed a photo so that they couldsee a comparison. Mr. Garber presented an older photo which showed Rite Aid
and the size of it and explained thatthis proposed sign would be smaller than the square footage that Rite Aid had.
Ms. Costa from Signature Signs explained that Dollar Tree has a lot more frontage. Mr. Young wanted confirmation
that theproposed sign is smaller thanthe old Rite Aid sign and asked if it was back-lit. Mr. Garber confirmed that
this sign is smallerand that all of the signs are back-lit.

Mr. Brahmachari wantedto see a side -by -side comparison to make sure that the sign wasn’t overpowering. Mr.
Wallenstein suggested taking a wide -angle picture and transpose the sign you want in the location you want so we
don’thaveto speculate. Mr. Garber stated thatthis added spaceisn’t necessary becausethe sign will be less
overpoweringthanthe Rite Aid sign. Mr. Brahmachariagreedthatit would be good tohavea comparison, it could
be a picture orin an elevation to the fullextent of Shaw’s gable.

Mr. Youngstated that it is wise to be cautious because he would suspect that the tenants would wantsomething
similar, and we will be settingprecedence. Mr. Abelha explained that thetowns code allows for the additional 50%
above the50 square feet and they must have realized thatsituations like this comeup andthat if the other tenants
wanted it, the Towns variance guidelines allows forit. He explained that he had a long conversation with Mr. White
the Building Inspector at thetime.

Mr. Wallenstein stated that youhave up to that 50%but youstillneed approval. Mr. Brahmachariagreed. Mr.
Garberstated that whathe isasking forisallowed. Mr. Brahmachari would still feel more comfortable seeingan
elevation for comparison. Ms. Costa stated thatcustomers are havinga hard time finding Dollar Tree and asked for
a bigger sign. They havea lot of frontage, over 70 linear feetand its proportionate and fits very nicely.

Mr. Garber stated that we can do this tonight and they don’thave to make the applicantcome back. He presented an
existing plaza which shows the other store fronts. Ms. Costa explainedthat thecurrent letters are 26” talland they
are askingfor31”tall,an additional 5. Mr. Brahmachari was satisfied with the photo because this showed before
and after. Mr. Garber stated that theincreaseallotment is in our code.

Mr. Garberaskedif the board had anymore questions. Mr. Wallenstein wanted to know the width ofthe expansion
ofthe new letters. Ms. Costa stated that it is going from 20 feet to 27 feet.

The board members were ultimately satisfied what they have seen and had no further comments. Mr. Garber opened
to the public for comments. There weren’t any andasked if the applicant wanted to close the case.

Motion:

Chairmade a motionto close Case 1905 — 700 South Main Street — Dollar Tree. Mr. Brahmachariseconded the
motion. Approvedby unanimousrollcallvote 3-0-0 (Garber, Young, Brahmachari).

Motion:

Chairmade a motionto approve the Special Permit for Case 1905 — 700 South Main Street. Mr. Brahmachari
seconded the motion. Approved by unanimousrollcallvote 3-0-0 (Garber, Young, Brahmachari).

Case 1906 - 299-303 North Main Street




Present forthe applicant: Mike Khoury, Madoff & Khoury, LLP, counsel forthe applicant and BillBuckley of Bay
Colony Group, engineer fortheapplicant.

Mr. Garberreadthelegalnoticeinto therecord.

Mr. Garber gave theapplicant screen share since he didn’t havethe renderings weren’t online. Mr. Khourygave a
summary of what the project. He explainedthattheyarelooking fora comprehensive permit toallow the
development ofa 15-unit condominium locatedin 2 lots. 299 & 303 North Main Street. 303 was theautorepair
shop that was built in 1938 andhas fallen intoa state of disrepair. 299 is a single-family residence built in 1960 and
the two lots combined is 11.5 acres which 6.1 are buildable and 5.4 whichare wetlands. Theyhave applied under
the localinitiative program sponsored by the state Department of Housing Community Development, in orderto
ensure a cooperative way to develop affordable housing. It’snot section 8 housing, it’s just a requirement 20% of
theunits in a development areaffordable by being discounted by 20% offof marketvalue Heexplained that they
have proposed a LIP (Local Initiative Project) forapproval of theproject. Thisis based onthe process outlined by
the statechapter 40B and he stated that they went before the Town’s select board to see if the projectis eligible fora
LIP and then they would need to go to the state DHCD fora letter ofeligibility. They have receivedboth approvals.
Healso stated thatthey had several meetings with the town, as well as a meeting with the abutters outlining the
proposal. Mr. Khoury explained that its not a subdivision, it will be built in a north -south fashion offof a single
driveway whichends in a cul-de-sac, which satisfies the requirements for safety. The 15 units willbe in grouped in
5 triplexes sections and be identical in size and configuration. There willbe 11 market units and 4 affordable. It will
be built within in the 6.1 acres ofthe two lots that isn’t wetlands, and theremaining property willbe donated to the
town.

Mr. Garberaskedif the redline on the drawing was the 100”bufferline. Mr. Buckley stated that yes it was
approximately the 100- foot buffer line.

Mr. Khoury presented an aerial photo showing the existing conditions of the lots. He explained that the property
from anenvironmental standpoint has been vettedtwice. There were 2 environmental review that confirmedthat
the property doesn’t present any environmental hazards and meets the legal requirements. He explainedthat the
project willbe done with as little disturbanceto the woods and landscapingas possible. No disturbanceto the
wetlands of course and elimination of tress willbe kept to as little as possible They also have a planting scheme and
there would be significantlandscape buffers alongthe lot lines. Mr., Khoury also stated that they submitted a traffic
study in support ofthe projectand thatthere will be minimal increase in additional tra ffic impacts. Also, the site
lines east and west exiting the driveway are almost2 times therecommended requirements.

Mr. Khoury presented therenderings that thearchitect and designer have prepared. He presented several ariel views
and a series of ground-level views showing how the driveway would be laid out and the view of the proposed units,
the landscaping, etc.

Mr. Khoury completed his presentationand asked the chair if there was anything else that he should address. Mr.
Garberthoughtthat he did a good jobpresentingthe projectand heopened it up to the rest ofthe board.

Mr. Brahmachari asked whatthe purpose of tonight’s meetingandthe expectations. Mr. Khoury stated that they
filed a formalapplication alongwith the plans fora comprehensivepermit andhe is hopingthatthe board will
consider or grant theapplication for permit thathas been endorsed by the state and the board of selectman.

Mr. Brahmacharithanked Mr. Khoury forthe presentation and noted that there area couple of things that need
discussion, particularly thedistance between buildings. Mr. Khourynotedthat theyare looking fora variance for
the separationofthe space between buildings 2 & 3 they needa special permit or varianceto allow forthe21”
separationratherthanthe 40. Mr. Brahmacharialso requested to see theplanting planthat was discussed with the
removal of the trees. Also,someoftheunits are close to the property line and canthe design be revised. Mr.
Khoury stated thatthey exceed the front yard, rear yard, and side yard requirements. Mr. Brahmachariasked why
the clusters can’t be separated to meetthe 40’ requirement. Mr. Buckley explained thatthere are some isolated
wetlands and that they are trying to meet as many as thelocalregulations as possible and tryingnotto do any work
within 50’ of it which moves thedriveway andbuildings to the west. Also, the set-backs and septic systems are
takinginto consideration. Also,they have to considerthe 100” bufferline. Mr. Brahmachari suggested thatit may
need a jointreview with the fire departmentbecause thebuildings are too close together and this is concerning. Mr.
Garberasked if they have sprinkler systems and Mr. Buckley confirmed that they did and thatthey have had some
meetings thatincluded the fire department and that wasn’t a concern. They were more concerned with access. Mr.



Garberstated that since they are all sprinkled being close togetheris nulland void. Mr. Brahmachari suggested that
there may me some added requirementaside ofthis review.

Mr. Youngaskedif the units were approximately 1000 sf. and Mr. Khoury stated thatthey are each2840 sf of living
space plus garage of 270 sf. with 2 bedrooms, a denorhome office and 2.5 baths Mr. Youngasked forthe
proposedsetbacks forthe north, east and south. Mr. Buckley went through the plans and indicated the setbacks for
eacharea. Mr. Youngasked what therequirements are, and Mr. Khoury stated thatit was 20’ and that they metor
exceed allof the setbacks. Mr. Youngalso questioned the location of some of the units relative to the property lines
and Mr. Buckley replied with the informationand all of the requirements are being metand there are trees between.

Mr. Wallenstein stated he was looking at the websiteandnoted thattherewas a lot of material, and he hadn’t hada
chance to go throughit completely, buthe hada few initial comments. He noted thatit’s 2 single family houses and
youwantto go to 15 units with 3 bedrooms. He noted that thatwas a significant increase in density and was curious
asto why they neededto squeeze so many intothe area. And hewas curious if the neighbors would feel the same
way. Mr. Khoury said its questionable on how many houses you can get in there due to the wetlands and the odd
configuration. The cost ofbuildingone ortwo homes in that area would notjustify the development. The design
was done andthe state and the selectboard found thatit would be beneficial for thetown. In maintaining its
affordable housing count census and cleaningup the decapitated building. Mr. Khoury also stated that 40Ballows
and encourages for affordable housing in areas that normally wouldn’tallowit. He also suggests that they are
maintaininga good buffer along the west side and this project would complimentthe homes along Gabriel Road and
it’s an attractive and appealing project which would substantially improve the area. Mr. Wallensteinaskedif 40B
overrides local zoningand Mr. Khoury stated thatit doesn’t. He asked Mr. Khoury to list the permits and variances
thatheneeds. Mr. Wallenstein asked if there was any assurance that they can give the neighbors thatthey won’t
have to worry aboutany groundwater or surface contamination from the lot thathas the garage/gas station for
decades. Mr. Khoury noted that the environmental report from 2019 as wellas an additional report that confirms
thattheproperty isclean. There were 2 LSP that did thesereports, theseare licensed people to review and analyze
and both said its clean. Mr. Khoury stated that heunderstood it thatthe meeting was aboutthe tree removaland
that realtors led them to believe that it was conservation land which was unfortunate. But they worked hardto
maintain thetree line and developed a replanting scheme but there will be trees cleared.

Mr. Garberreada letter from the Town’s Engineering Department (which is on the town website) into record which
contained 25 items tobe addressed. Mr. Garber stated thatwe don’t have quite a few of these. Mr. Buckley stated
thatthey are all valid comments, and many are already onthe planset of preliminary drawings that areneeded for
the permit. And thatif the permit is approvedall of these items will be addressed in the final construction drawings.
Mr. Buckley stated thata fter this meeting they willbe makinganynecessary changes andthey will be draftinga
response to the Town Engineer.

Mr. Brahmachari asked fora summary ofthe relief thatthey were asking forand Mr. Khoury went over the 3 items.
Mr. Brahmachari stated thatin the past we havereviewed engineering plans for similar projects atthis stage and if
the applicantis not prepared to produce theengineer plans atthis moment, thenthe Town Engineers comments
should be addressed. He also suggestedthatmaybe a peerreview would beneeded. Asan extensionto theZBA he
was goingto recommend a peer review with Tom Houston. Mr. Garber will reach out to Mr. O’Cain regarding the
peerreview, and he will email what the comments are.

Mr. Garber opened the meeting to public comment.

Mr. Howard Ross, anattorney in town since 1986 and heis an abutter living on 287 North Main Street. He is going
to be speaking on behalfof 10 abutters who have signed and filed their vehementobjections to this project which he
submittedon August 19,2022. Mr. Ross read theletterinto the record. He noted that one of the items read into the
record stated that North Main going by this location is one of themost heavily traveled streets in Sharon and that
waitingat the light in Cobb Comerisalreadya problem. The garage hasn’t generated any traffic in over20 years,
and thisisa Single Residence A Zone which hashad nopeople livingorcarsatthemomentand could easily be two
houses with no objection. Mr. Ross statedthathe was struck by the presentation ofillustrations showing massive
amounts of trees. It lookedas if the condo complex would be completely shielded from the abutters on Gabriel
Road whoare objectingandthe abutters on 291 North Main. One thing that hasn’tbeenbrought up is the septic
systems. He believes thatthere are 4 of them literally atthe property line of the 291 residents which have a putting
green on their front yard with a tree buffer. If this project is allowed, they won’t havethatprivacy. Mr. Ross also
asked aboutthe garages if they were one ortwo car garages. Mr. Buckley confirmed that they are a one car garage.
Mr. Ross was wondering where the cars will be parked for the others potentially livingin the house. Most families
have more thanonecar. So how will this affectthis already highly traffickedroad. Mr. Rossalso stated thata lot of



the abutters will be losing their privacy and that there isn’t any necessity for this project. It will affect, so many
abutters, with traffic, diminution and adverse effects of property values, noise during construction and a fter,
decimation ofnature land, several huge septic system and safety concerns arising with the additional tra ffic.

Mr. Khoury addressed the woods and noted thatthose woods aren’t owned by theabutters, andthey don’t have
controloverthosewoods. He alsonoted that they aren’t taking down anybody’s trees from their property. They will
only be takingtrees from buildable land. If you lookatthe elevation with respectto Gabriel Road, there is a thick
coverof woods including the cover with-in thelocal ordinance wetlands. In addition, there will also be a significant
cover with regards to the west side and theapplicant will take the input from the abutters and satisfy them within
reason. Theargument with the woods on private property, neighbors don’t have theright to dictateprovided its
reasonable and there are accommodations made for privacy. He also noted thatthere willnot be a significant
material increase in the tra ffic flow by these 15 units.

Mr. Ross asked Mr. Buckley to respond to where all of the cars will go because it doesn’t look like there is on street
parking. Mr. Buckley stated that eachunit has a onecar garage and eachuntil can handle onecarin the driveway,
so they will have 2 spaces andthatthereis additional parking throughoutthe development.

Mr. Mathew Keenan of27 Gabriel Road statedthathe hasn’t goneto any priormeetings,and he is wonderinghow
farthey are into the process and are they locked into thenumber of units. He was wondering if there was any
leeway, could it be smaller. He also questioned the offices vs. bedrooms, etc. because someof the offices will be
used as bedrooms. He also wanted to know what the economics are for the town, how many school children, taxes,
and expenditures by thetown. Mr. Garber gave some reference as to why the select board agreed to the project
regardingthe percentage of40B which keeps us from having major projects in town.

Kim Hokanson of 13 Gabriel Road she noted that she is on the east side and thatthe developmentis close to herand
the beginning of Gabriel Road. She stated thatthey arefairly new to the project and that they just moved here. Ms.
Hokanson mentioned that shemet with the owner and inquired aboutthe pocket play groundand was wondering if
that was a requirement. She also stated thatthere isn’t a buffer on the east-side and she doesn’t think that this will
compliment her property. She also doesn’t feel great about the planting scheme and has some concerns about the
open spaces. Ms. Hokansonalso has a concern with the parking particularly in the fire turnaround. Ms. Hokanson
also notedthat she was told that it was conservation land, and she has been told thatit could be worse. Also, that the
propertyis zoned for Single Family. She isnot happy with the development.

Mr. Khoury addressed her comments and explained that the state has endorsed theprojectand thattheyaren’t doing
anythingagainstthe law. He also stated earlierthatthe playground canbe removed.

Mr. Ross asked how the abutters can be notified of further hearings or proceedings. He stated that he happened to
see the notice that he wouldn’t have normally seen. Mr. Garber stated thatanything that thedeveloper does is
supposed to go through the Building Department and that the abutters will be notified if there is a specialhearing.
Mr. Ross asked if therewas a continuance would they be notified, and Mr. Garber stated that only in something
substantial was happening. Mr. Ross stated that they were notified ofall the priormeetings, etc.

Mr. Khoury stated that they met with the Town and had a public hearing with the Select Board.

Mr. Garber suggested that he reach out to the Select Boardif he is suggestinga public hearing. Mr. Wallenstein
suggested to go to the ZB A website tostay updated. Mr. Ross thanked the board and suggested that there mustbe a
way that theabutters be notified.

Mr. Vincent Cho of 13 Gabriel Road wanted to know what they canexpect for privacylevels. He wanted to point
outthatit’s Ushape andwhenyougetto 13 andthecul-de-sac youdon’thavewetlands andyou cansee straight
through because the trees aren’t; thatdense. He asked for clarity on there-planting plans.

In response, Mr. Buckley shared the landscaping plans andnoted thatis shows that there isa 4” wall with balsam fir
treesthat willbe plantedand alongtheedges on the east side. Mr. Cho askedhow large they are, Mr. Buckley
statedthatthey startout at 5’ and wasn’t sure how quickly they grow.

Michelle Bosqueof 14 Gabriel Road inquired on how they operationalize notsignificantly impactingtraffic. How
do you measure thatand determineit’s not a significantimpact? She is concerned that when she leaves, she often
gets stuck at Gabrieland Main Steetandnotes that they are at a section of Main Street where therehave been
severaltraffic accidents. How will thisnot becomeanissue.



Mr. Buckley stated that we are goingto have another consultant review thetraffic. He stated the consultants lookat
is the sight distancelooking left and right and becauseit’s on an outside of a curb you haveover 700’ of sight
distance in each direction which is significantly more than what’s required, and it can accommodatetraffic going 50
mph. Theyalso lookataverage daily trips and that this willadd about 117 daily trips and stated thatyoucan go on
a MassDOT websiteandlook at anyroadto see the traffic countand thatthe count for North Main Streetis 12,000
carsso 117 isless than 1%. Ms. Bosqueaskedif that number was recently because not everybody is back to work
due to the pandemic. Mr. Buckley stated that it is an estimate based ontoday from ASHTO.

Mr. Garberstated that Tom Houston will do a traffic study in the peerreview. He also stated that the Town also has
some studies on North Main Street for other projects prior to COVID.

Mr. Garberaskedif any other abutters wanted to speak and asked if any ofthe board members wanted to speak as

well. He statedthat we will have to continue the case andreach outto the Town Engineerto get the peerreview
initiated. And we cancontinuethe casebasedon the peerreview.

Motion:
Chairmade a motionto continue Case 1906 - 299-303 North Main Street. Mr. Brahmachari seconded the motion.
Approvedby unanimous rollcall vote 4-0-0 (Garber, Young, Brahmachari, Wallenstein).

The meetingadjourned

Respectfully submitted



